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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

DESIGNATION FORM

(to be used by counsel or pro se plaintiff to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of assignment to the appropriate calendar)
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR
THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

ROBERT BATES
Kaneohe, HI 96755
CIVIL ACTION NO.
Plaintiff,

V. JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

COMCAST CORPORATION; COMCAST
CABLE COMMUNICATIONS
MANAGEMENT, LLC; and COMCAST
(CC) OF WILLOW GROVE

One Comcast Center

1701 JFK Boulevard

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Defendants.

CIVIL COMPLAINT

. INTRODUCTION

Plaintiff, Robert Bates (“Plaintiff”), brings this action against his former employers,
Comcast Corporation, Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC, and Comcast (CC)
of Willow Grove (collectively, “Defendants”), because he was subjected to unlawful
discrimination due to his disability and retaliated against because of his complaints of disability
discrimination and requests for reasonable accommodations and medical leave, in violation of
the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et seq. (“ADA”), the
Family Medical Leave Act, 29 U.S.C. § 2601, et seq. (“FMLA”), the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act, as amended, 43 P.S. 8 951, et seq. (“PHRA”), and the Philadelphia Fair Practices
Ordinance, Phila. Code 8 9-1101, et seq. (“PFPO”). Plaintiff seeks all damages, including
economic loss, compensatory, liquidated and punitive damages, his attorney’s fees and costs, and

all other available relief under applicable federal, state, and local laws as this Court deems
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appropriate.
1. PARTIES
1. Plaintiff, Robert Bates, is an individual and a citizen of Hawaii. He resides in

Kaneohe, Hawaii.

2. Defendant Comcast Corporation is a Pennsylvania corporation with its principal

place of business located at One Comcast Center, 1701 JFK Boulevard, Philadelphia, PA 19103.

3. Defendant Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC is organized
under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and maintains a principal place of

business at One Comcast Center, 1701 JFK Boulevard, Philadelphia, PA 19103.

4. Defendant Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC is a wholly owned

subsidiary of Defendant Comcast Corporation and they both act as joint employers.

5. Defendant Comcast (CC) of Willow Grove is a Pennsylvania company and
wholly owned subsidiary of Defendant Comcast Cable Communications Management, LLC with

a principal place of business at 1701 JFK Boulevard, Philadelphia, PA 19103.

6. Defendants are engaged in an industry affecting interstate commerce and

regularly conduct business in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

7. At all times material hereto, Defendants collectively constituted Plaintiff’s
employers under the joint and/or single employer doctrine. Upon information and belief,
Defendants shared common management, had interrelated operations, and collectively controlled

Plaintiff’s job duties and responsibilities.



Case 2:22-cv-00774-GAM Document 1 Filed 03/02/22 Page 6 of 31

8. At all times material hereto, Plaintiff was an employee of Defendants as defined

by the statutes that form the basis of this Action.

9. At all times material hereto, Defendants were employers as defined by the statues

that form the basis of this Action.

10. At all times material hereto, Defendants acted by and through authorized agents,
servants, workmen, and/or employees acting within the course and scope of their employment

with Defendants and in furtherance of their business.

1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

11. The causes of action that form the bases of this matter arise under the ADA, the

FMLA, the PHRA, and the PFPO.

12.  The District Court has jurisdiction over Count I (ADA) and Count Il (FMLA)

pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331.

13.  The District Court has jurisdiction over all Counts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 81332
since the amount in controversy exceeds the sum or value of seventy-five thousand dollars
($75,000), exclusive of interests and costs, and as there is diversity of citizenship as Plaintiff is a

citizen of Hawaii and Defendants are citizens of Pennsylvania, respectively.

14.  Venue is proper in this District Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b).

15.  On or about August 10, 2020, Plaintiff filed a Charge of Discrimination with the
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”), complaining of the acts of
discrimination and retaliation alleged herein. The Charge of Discrimination was cross-filed with

the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission (“PHRC”). Attached hereto, incorporated
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herein, and marked as Exhibit “A” is a true and correct copy of the EEOC Charge of

Discrimination (with personal identifying information redacted).

16.  On or about December 3, 2021, the EEOC issued Plaintiff a Notice of Right to
Sue regarding his EEOC Charge of Discrimination. Attached hereto, and marked as Exhibit “B”

is a true and correct copy of this notice (with personal identifying information redacted).

17.  Plaintiff has fully complied with all administrative prerequisites for the

commencement of this action.

IV. EACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

18. Plaintiff was hired by Defendants in or about August 2008 as Director of
Technicians. In or about July 2010 his title changed to Director of Technical Operations.

19.  Amid his strong performance, Plaintiff was promoted to Senior Director of
Business Operations.

20. On or about January 11, 2016, Plaintiff was notified that his job was being
eliminated as part of a reduction in force and offered severance.

21. Before the severance period was over, Defendants recruited Plaintiff back into the
organization.

22.  On or about July 25, 2016, Plaintiff began working for Defendants as Director of
Business Operations, reporting to Terry Connell (“Connell”) (non-disabled), Senior Vice
President of Sales.

23.  As Director of Business Operations, Plaintiff was responsible for reporting

financial and operational positions related to Business Services Sales.
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24.  Throughout his employment, Plaintiff performed his duties in a consistently
exemplary manner, receiving strong performance reviews and related bonuses and raises.

25. In or about the Fall of 2018, Plaintiff disclosed to Connell and other staff
members that he has a disability: diabetes with related complications.

26. Plaintiff further told Connell and others at Defendants that his disability requires
him to take insulin and that he was experiencing serious complications from diabetes, including
having to administer higher levels of insulin through abdominal injections and experiencing
trouble seeing and/or working with spreadsheets during the workday.

27. Shortly after disclosing his disability to Connell, on or about November 9, 2018,
Connell told Plaintiff that Defendants would be undergoing a reorganization, and said that there
might be a new “opportunity” for Plaintiff to take a position that would report to Dan Carr
(“Carr”) (non-disabled).

28. On or about January 31, 2019, Plaintiff applied to the position reporting to Carr.

29.  The internal recruiter responsible for the position with Carr told Plaintiff that if he
received the job, Plaintiff would be transitioning from an “Individual Contributor” to a “People
Leader” role and would receive an increase in salary.

30.  On or about March 10, 2019, Plaintiff accepted the position with Carr, but learned
that despite the increase in responsibilities, he would not receive any increase in salary.

31. In March 2019 and throughout the Spring, Plaintiff performed both his new role
and his old role without any additional compensation.

32. At the same time, Carr increasingly expanded the breadth and scope of Plaintiff’s

new position.
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33. By April 2019, the stress of working two positions had exacerbated conditions
associated with Plaintiff’s disability: advanced retina disease and high blood pressure.

34.  Plaintiff sought treatment from his physicians as a result of the exacerbation of
the conditions identified above.

35. Plaintiff continued to work two positions without compensation for same or
acknowledgment by Defendants.

36. On or about May 17, 2019, Plaintiff met with a retinal surgeon who diagnosed
him with Cystoid Macular Edema and placed his symptoms at 8.5 on a scale of 1-10 (with 10
being the worst prognosis).

37.  The retinal surgeon told Plaintiff he would need injections in both eyes to
stabilize his retinas.

38. On or about June 17, 2019, during a medical visit, Plaintiff’s doctor expressed
concerned that Plaintiff was experiencing Stage 2 kidney disease, a complication of diabetes and
the increasing high blood pressure Plaintiff was experiencing as a result of performing two full-
time jobs at once.

39.  On orabout June 18, 2019, Plaintiff informed Carr of his disability.

40.  Plaintiff also told Carr that to perform the two full-time jobs, Plaintiff had been
working nights, weekends, and holidays and that this had a negative impact on his health amid
his disability.

41.  Plaintiff provided Carr with details about his retinal disease, including his need
for retinal injections and occasional symptoms of transient blindness and his high blood pressure.

42.  Approximately three weeks later, on or about July 11, 2019, and for the first time,

Carr told Plaintiff that his performance was inadequate.
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43.  Carr also told Plaintiff that he needed to perform more work and increase his
responsibilities.

44, Before advising Carr of Plaintiff’s disability and the related health complications
he was experiencing, Carr had never suggested that Plaintiff’s performance was “inadequate” or
that Plaintiff had failed to meet the expectations.

45, Between July 11, 2019 and August 20, 2019, Plaintiff continued to experience
symptoms of his disability.

46. For the first time since joining Defendants, Plaintiff took two sick days (accrued
and unused under Defendants’ policies) to seek treatment.

47. On August 20, 2019, Carr provided Plaintiff with a letter called “Accountability
and Areas for Improvement,” dated August 12, 2019.

48.  As Plaintiff had never been presented with any similar letter or warning in years
at Defendants and as it was entirely inconsistent with his past performance reviews, Plaintiff
emailed Ali Rowley (“Rowley”), Human Resources, and asked for additional information.

49.  Plaintiff further complained to Rowley about the letter and unwarranted criticism
on or about August 21, 2019.

50. On or about August 21, 2019, Plaintiff initiated a request for FMLA
coverage/intermittent FMLA coverage for absences necessitated by his disability.

51. Defendants approved Plaintiff for intermittent FMLA leave so that he could seek
treatment for his disability as needed.

52.  Atall material times, Plaintiff remained able to perform the essential functions of

his job with or without a reasonable accommodation.
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53.  On or about September 18, 2019, Carr sent an email to Plaintiff requiring him to
provide twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to him in advance of any sick day or day covered under
his approved intermittent FMLA leave.

54.  Carr’s request violated Defendants’ policies on the use of sick time and the terms
of his approved intermittent FMLA leave.

55. Plaintiff continued to perform all essential functions of his job despite his
disability and need for treatment for same, including without limitation, by working late into the
evening and before and after medical appointments, even on days that were supposed to be
entirely “off” as sick/FMLA time.

56. On September 20, 2019, Carr sent an email containing unwarranted criticism and
reiterating his requirement that Plaintiff provide him twenty-four (24) hours of any sick/FMLA
time.

57. Plaintiff responded in writing to Carr detailing, among other things, errors in
Carr’s criticism of his performance.

58.  Plaintiff complained to Carr that he was violating Defendants’ sick and FMLA
policies in requiring notice for use of sick days/FMLA leave.

59.  On or about October 2, 2019, Carr met with Plaintiff and further criticized
Plaintiff’s performance.

60.  When Plaintiff tried to provide Carr with information to demonstrate how his
criticism of Plaintiff was inaccurate, Carr cut him off.

61.  Plaintiff told Carr that he was feeling harassed.

62. Carr told Plaintiff that he would involve Human Resources.
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63. On or about October 9, 2019, Plaintiff met with Carr and Amy Masci (“Masci”),
Human Resources. Plaintiff detailed for them the ways in which Carr’s prior letters were
unwarranted and inaccurate.

64.  Following Plaintiff’s complaints to Carr and Masci, Defendants continued to
subject Plaintiff to a hostile work environment, including by way of unwarranted criticism;
micromanagement; continuous increasing of his job duties, responsibilities and expectations;
refusing to appropriately staff his team to ensure that the workload across the team was
appropriate; and, other hostile treatment.

65. Carr continued to interfere with Plaintiff’s FMLA rights and intermittent leave
needs related to Plaintiff’s disability.

66. On or about October 29, 2019, Plaintiff sent an email complaining of disability
discrimination to Carr, Masci, Connell, and Andrew Topping (“Topping”), Vice President,
Employee and Labor Relations.

67.  Following that email, Carr’s hostile and demeaning treatment of Plaintiff
continued.

68.  Plaintiff required additional treatment for his disability as the stress associated
with his work conditions worsened his health.

69.  On or about December 9, 2019, Topping and individuals from Defendants’ legal
department falsely accused Plaintiff of stealing “sensitive revenue data” from Defendants.

70.  Topping pointed to a notice of data transfer from Defendants’ internal systems.

71.  Topping failed to acknowledge that the notice was related to Defendants
swapping out his work computer for a new one and the related file transfer necessary to ensure

that the new computer had all of the same information as the old computer.
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72.  Plaintiff understood the above false accusation to be retaliatory for his complaints
of disability discrimination and intended to intimidate Plaintiff.

73. On or about December 13, 2019, Plaintiff met with Stacy Schor (“Schor”),
Director of Employee Engagement, and provided further information about the discrimination to
which he was being subjected, including in connection with a hostile work environment.

74. On or about December 18, 2019, Carr and Masci gave Plaintiff a “choice” of
accepting a performance improvement plan (“PIP”) or being terminated.

75. If Plaintiff chose termination and signed a release of all legal claims against
Defendants, including disability discrimination claims, Plaintiff would receive sixty (60) days of
severance in return.

76. Masci confirmed that there were no other options available to Plaintiff other than
termination or accepting an unwarranted PIP.

77. The stress associated with the “choice” presented to Plaintiff was followed by a
spike in his blood pressure and other symptoms related to his disability that required Plaintiff to
seek medical treatment.

78.  On or about January 6, 2020, Carr emailed the PIP to Plaintiff.

79.  The PIP contained factual inaccuracies, which Plaintiff highlighted to Carr and
Masci during a meeting on January 7, 2020.

80.  On or about January 14, 2020, Plaintiff received an email from Masci confirming
that Plaintiff had not stolen any data from Defendants and that Defendants’ accusation was false.

81.  On or about January 17, 2020, Carr sent a third version of the PIP, purportedly

edited to remove factual inaccuracies.

10
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82.  The PIP still contained factual inaccuracies, unwarranted criticism and required
that Plaintiff not ever take any sick/intermittent FMLA leave.

83.  On or about January 23, 2020, Plaintiff emailed Defendants again complaining of
disability discrimination and asking Defendants to engage in the interactive process with him
regarding several outstanding requests for a reasonable accommodation.

84. Plaintiff made requests for reasonable accommodations as follows:

a. Breaks in the day to test Plaintiff’s glucose;

b. A private area in the office to test Plaintiff’s glucose and perform other
medical tests as necessary;

C. A large computer monitor to address Plaintiff’s vision-related issues; and

d. Periods of rest throughout the day and the ability to go for short walks.

85. Plaintiff performed to the PIP, sending multiple deliverables to Carr who did not
meet with him to provide meaningful or substantive feedback on Plaintiff’s performance to the
PIP.

86.  On or about March 5, 2020, Defendants informed Plaintiff he would not receive
any bonus or salary increase. Typically, Plaintiff received an approximately $15,000 bonus and
an approximately 3% salary increase.

87. On or about March 9, 2020, Plaintiff received a “Does Not Meet” rating for the
prior year, which was unwarranted.

88.  On or about March 18, 2020, Defendants told Plaintiff it would “extend” his PIP
amid COVID-19. But, instead of “extending” the existing PIP, Carr gave Plaintiff a fourth
version of a PIP that continued to change his job duties expectations.

89.  Plaintiff again complained of disability discrimination to Masci and Schor.

11
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90. Upon information and belief, Defendants never engaged in any meaningful
investigation of Plaintiff’s complaints.

91. Between April 21, 2020 and April 29, 2020, as the hostile work environment to
which Plaintiff was being subjected continued and as his requests for reasonable
accommodations were ignored, Plaintiff complained of disability discrimination to Defendants
and provided the basis for his complaints.

92. On or about May 6, 2020, Carr and Masci told Plaintiff he was terminated,
effective immediately.

93.  The only reason given to Plaintiff was that he had not completed his PIP.

94.  The stated reason is false and pretextual.

95. Plaintiff asked Masci if Defendants would consider him for any open position
elsewhere in the organization, to which Masci responded “no.”

96. Upon information and belief, Plaintiff’s job duties remained within Defendants’
organization and were performed by individuals who were not disabled, had not recently
required medical leave or reasonable accommodations and who had not complained of disability
discrimination.

97. Plaintiff’s disability, including his record of disability and Defendants’ regarding
him as having a disability, was a motivating and/or determinative factor in connection with
Defendants’ discriminatory and retaliatory treatment of Plaintiff, including without limitation in
connection with: subjecting Plaintiff to a hostile work environment; falsely accusing Plaintiff of
stealing Defendants’ data; placing Plaintiff on a PIP; and terminating Plaintiff.

98.  Plaintiff’s complaints of disability discrimination and interference with his FMLA

rights were motivating and/or determinative factor(s) in connection with Defendants’ retaliatory

12
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treatment of Plaintiff, including without limitation in connection with: subjecting Plaintiff to a
hostile work environment; falsely accusing Plaintiff of stealing Defendants data; placing Plaintiff
on a PIP; and terminating Plaintiff.

99. Defendants failed to engage in the interactive process with Plaintiff regarding his
requests for accommodation.

100. Plaintiff’s requests for FMLA leave and reasonable accommodations were a
motivating and/or determinative factor in Defendants’ retaliatory treatment of Plaintiff including
in connection with: subjecting Plaintiff to a hostile work environment; falsely accusing Plaintiff
of stealing Defendants’ data; placing Plaintiff on a PIP; and terminating Plaintiff.

101. Defendants failed to prevent or address the discriminatory and retaliatory conduct
referred to herein and further failed to take corrective and remedial measures to make the
workplace free of discriminatory and retaliatory conduct.

102. Defendants retaliated against Plaintiff for taking FMLA leave and interfered with
his rights to additional FMLA leave as necessitated by his disability.

103. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ discriminatory and retaliatory
conduct, Plaintiff has in the past incurred, and may in the future incur, a loss of earnings and/or
earning capacity, loss of benefits including without limitation loss of health benefits and loss of
Short and Long Term Disability insurance, pain and suffering, embarrassment, humiliation, loss
of self-esteem, mental anguish, and loss of life’s pleasures, the full extent of which is not known
at this time.

104. Plaintiff is now suffering and will continue to suffer irreparable injury and
monetary damages as a result of Defendants’ discriminatory and retaliatory acts unless and until

this Court grants the relief requested herein.

13
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105. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein.

COUNT I
(VIOLATION OF ADA)

106. Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference the above paragraphs as if set forth
herein in their entirety.

107. By committing the foregoing acts of discrimination and retaliation against
Plaintiff, Defendants have violated the ADA.

108. Defendants acted willfully and intentionally, and with malice and/or reckless
indifference to Plaintiff’s rights, thereby warranting the imposition of punitive damages.

109. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violation of the ADA, Plaintiff
has suffered the injuries, damages, and losses set forth herein.

110. Plaintiff is entitled to all costs and attorneys’ fees incurred as a result of the
unlawful behavior complained of herein.

111. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein.

COUNT 1
(VIOLATION OF THE EMLA)

112. Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference the above paragraphs as if set forth
herein in their entirety.

113. By committing the foregoing acts against Plaintiff, Defendants have violated the
FMLA.

114. Defendants’ conduct was retaliatory and/or interfered with, restrained and/or
denied the exercise of Plaintiff’s rights to FMLA leave.

115. Said violations were willful, not in good faith and Defendants did not have

reasonable grounds to believe that the foregoing acts were not in violation of the FMLA.

14
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116. The imposition of liquidated damages is warranted.

117.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violations of the FMLA, Plaintiff
has suffered damages and losses set forth herein and has incurred attorneys’ fees and costs.

118. Plaintiff suffered and may continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary
damages as a result of Defendants’ violations of the FMLA unless this Court grants the relief
requested herein.

119. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein.

COUNT Ml
(VIOLATION OF THE PHRA)

120. Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference the above paragraphs as if set forth
herein in their entirety.

121. Defendants, by the above improper and discriminatory and retaliatory acts, have
violated the PHRA.

122.  Said violations were intentional and willful.

123.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violation of the PHRA, Plaintiff
has sustained the injuries, damages, and losses set forth herein and has incurred attorneys’ fees
and costs.

124.  Plaintiff suffered and may continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary
damages as a result of Defendants’ discriminatory and retaliatory acts unless and until this Court
grants the relief requested herein.

125.  No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein.

15
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COUNT IV
(VIOLATION OF THE PFPO)

126. Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference the above paragraphs as if set forth
herein in their entirety.

127. By committing the foregoing acts of discrimination and retaliation against
Plaintiff, Defendants have violated the PFPO.

128. Defendants acted willfully and intentionally, and with malice and/or reckless
indifference to Plaintiff’s rights, thereby warranting the imposition of punitive damages.

129. As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ violation of the PFPO, Plaintiff
has sustained the injuries, damages, and losses set forth herein and has incurred attorneys’ fees
and costs.

130. Plaintiff suffered and may continue to suffer irreparable injury and monetary
damages as a result of Defendants’ discriminatory and retaliatory acts unless and until this Court
grants the relief requested herein.

131. No previous application has been made for the relief requested herein.

RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks damages and legal and equitable relief in connection with
Defendants’ unlawful conduct, and specifically prays that this Court grant the following relief to
Plaintiff by:

@ declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of ADA,

(b) declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of the
FMLA;

(©) declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of the

PHRA;

16
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(d) declaring the acts and practices complained of herein to be in violation of the

PFPO;
(e) enjoining and permanently restraining the violations alleged herein;
4) entering judgment against Defendants and in favor of Plaintiff in an amount to be
determined,

(9) awarding compensatory damages to Plaintiff to make Plaintiff whole for all lost
earnings, earning capacity and benefits, past and future, which Plaintiff has suffered or may
suffer as a result of Defendants’ discriminatory and unlawful conduct;

(h) awarding compensatory damages to Plaintiff for past and future pain and
suffering, emotional upset, mental anguish, humiliation, and loss of life’s pleasures, which
Plaintiff has suffered or may suffer as a result of Defendants’ unlawful conduct;

0] awarding liquidated damages to Plaintiff;

()] awarding punitive damages to Plaintiff;

(K) awarding Plaintiff other such damages as are appropriate under the ADA, the
FMLA, the PHRA and the PFPO;

() awarding Plaintiff the costs of suit, expert fees and other disbursements, and
reasonable attorneys’ fees; and

(m)  granting such other and further relief as this Court may deem just, proper, or
equitable including other equitable and injunctive relief providing restitution for past violations

and preventing future violations.
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Dated: 3/2/2022

By:

18

Respectfully submitted,

CONSOLE MATTIACCI LAW, LLC

Katherine C. Oeltjen
KATHERINE C. OELTJEN, ESQ.
JONATHAN D. GILMAN, ESQ.
1525 Locust Street, 9" Floor
Philadelphia, PA 19102
oeltjen@consolelaw.com (email)
gilman@consolelaw.com (email)
(215) 545-7676 (office)

(215) 565-2852 (fax)

Attorneys for Plaintiff Robert Bates
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CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION AGENCY CHARGE NUMBER
o FEPA
This form is affected by the Privacy Act of 1974; See privacy statement X EEOC

before consolidating this form.

STATE OR LOCAL AGENCY: PHRA

NAME (Indicate Mr., Ms., Mrs.) HOME TELEPHONE NUMBER (Iuclude Area Code)
Robert Bates REDACTED
STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE AND ZIP DATE OF BIRTH

REDACTED West Chester, PA 19382 REDACTED

NAMED IS THE EMPLOYER, LABOR ORGANIZATION, EMPLOYMENT AGENCY, APPRENTICESHIP,
COMMITTEE, STATE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT WHO DISCRIMINATED AGAINST ME (If more than one than list
below)

NAME NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES TELEPHONE (Include Area Code)
Comeast Corporation 500+ (215) 286-1700
STREET ADDRESS CITY, STATE AND ZIP COUNTY
1701 John F. Kennedy Blvd. Philadelphia, PA 19103 Philadelphia
CAUSE OF DISCRIMINATION (Check appropriate box(es)) DATE DISCRIMINATION TOOK PLACE
0O Race 0O Color OSex O Religion [ National Origin
X Retaliation O Age X Disability O Other (Specify) Latest Date: May 6, 2020

I. THE PARTICULARS ARE:
A. Relevant Work History

I was hired by Comcast Cable Communications Management LLC (“Comcast” or “Respondent) in or about
August, 2008 as Director of Technical Operations. Amid my strong performance, | was promoted to Senior
Director Business Operations. On or about January 11, 2016, I was notified that my job was being eliminated as
part of a reduction in force and offered severance. However, before the severance period was over, Respondent
recruited me back into the organization. On or about July 25, 2016 I began working for Respondent as Director
of Business Operation, reporting to Terry Connell (“Connell”) (non-disabled), Senior Vice President of Sales.
As Director of Business Operations (“Director™), I was responsible for reporting financial and operational
positions related to Business Services Sales. Throughout my employment, I performed my duties in a consistently
exemplary manner, receiving strong performance reviews and the bonuses and raises associated with same.

I want this charge filed with both the EEOC and the State or local | NOFARY —{when-neeessary-for-State-and-Loeal Requirements)

Agency, if any. I will advise the agencies if I change my address or

telephone number and cooperate fully with them in the processing | Fswear-efaffirm-that Fhave read-the-nbeve-charge-and-that itis-true
of my charge in accordance with their procedures to-the-best-of my-knowledge-informationand-belief:

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

/7 ﬁ

P SIGNATURE OF COMPLAINANT
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS DATE
(Day Month, and year)
Date: ?/[0/ va “harging Party (Signature) *
T T
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EEOC Charge of Discrimination
Robert Bates v. Comcast Corporation
Page 2 of 7

B. Harm Summary

I believe that Respondent discriminated against because of my disability and retaliated against
me for complaining of disability discrimination. Evidence of discriminatory and retaliatory
conduct includes, but is not limited to the following:

I. In or about Fall, 2018, I disclosed to Connell and members of my staff that | have a
disability: diabetes. I further told Connell and others at Respondent that my disability
requires that [ take insulin and that | was experiencing serious complications from diabetes,
including having to administer higher levels of insulin through abdominal injections and
experiencing trouble seeing and/or working with spreadsheets during the work day.

2. Shortly after I disclosed my disability to Connell, on or about November 9, 2018, Connell
told me that Respondent would be undergoing a reorganization. Connell told me that there
might be an “opportunity” for me to take a position reporting to Dan Carr (*“Carr”) (non-
disabled).

3. On or about January 31, 2019, [ applied to the position reporting to Carr.
4. The internal recruiter responsible for the Carr position told me that if I received the job, I
would be shifted from an “individual contributor” to a “people leader” and receive an

increase in salary.

5. On or about March 10, 2019, I accepted the position with Carr, but learned that despite the
increase in responsibilities, | would not receive any increase in salary.

6. From March, 2019 throughout the Spring, | performed both my new role and my old role
without any additional compensation. At the same time, Carr increasingly expanded the

breadth and scope of my new position.

7. By April, 2019 the stress of working two positions had exacerbated conditions associated
with my disability: advanced retina disease and high blood pressure.

8. I sought treatment from my physicians as a result of the exacerbation of the conditions
identified above.

9. Icontinued to work two positions without compensation for same or acknowledgement by
Respondent that | was working two full-time positions.

10. On or about May 17, 2019, | saw a retinal surgeon who diagnosed me with Cystoid Macular
Edema and placed my symptoms at 8.5 on a scale of 1-10 (with 10 being the worst).

11. The retinal surgeon told me [ would need injections in both eyes to stabilize my retinas.
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EEOC Charge of Discrimination
Robert Bates v. Comcast Corporation
Page 3 of 7

On or about June, 17, 2019, during a medical visit, my doctor expressed concern that I was
experiencing Stage 2 kidney disease, a complication of diabetes and the increasing high
blood pressure I was experiencing as a result of performing two full time jobs at once.

On or about June 19, 2019, I told Carr about my disability.

. I also told Carr that to perform the two full-time jobs, I had been working nights, weekends,

and holidays and that this had had a negative impact on my health amid my disability. 1
provided Carr with details about my Retinal Disease, including my need for retinal
injections and occasional symptoms of transient blindness and my high blood pressure.

Approximately three weeks later, on or about July 11, 2019, and for the first time, Carr told
me that my performance was inadequate. Carr also told me that [ needed to perform more
work and increase my responsibilities.

. Prior to advising Carr of my disability and the related health complications 1 was

experiencing, he had never suggested that my performance was “inadequate” or that I had
failed to meet the expectations for the various positions I was performing.

Between July 11, 2019 and August 20, 2019, I continued to experience symptoms of my
disability. For the first time since joining Comcast, I took two sick days (accrued and
unused under Respondent’s policies) to seek treatment.

On August 20, 2019, Carr gave me a letter called “Accountability and Areas for
Improvement” dated August 12, 2019.

As I had never been presented with any similar letter or warning in years at Comcast and
as it was entirely inconsistent with my past performance reviews, I emailed Ali Rowley
(“Rowley”), Human Resources and asked for additional information.

I further complained to Rowley about the letter and unwarranted criticism on or about
August 21, 2019.

On or about August 21, 2019, | initiated a request for FMLA coverage/intermittent FMLA
coverage for absences necessitated by my disability.

Ultimately, Respondent approved me for intermittent FMLA leave so that I could seek
treatment for my disability as needed.

At all material times, I remained able to perform the essential functions of my job with or
without a reasonable accommodation.
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Robert Bates v. Comcast Corporation
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On or about September, 18, 2019, Carr sent an email to me requiring me to provide twenty-
four (24) hours’ notice to him in advance of any sick day or day covered under my approved
intermittent FMLA leave.

Carr’s request violated Respondent’s policies on the use of sick time and the terms of my
approved intermittent FMLA leave.

I continued to perform all essential functions of my job despite my disability and need for
treatment for same, including without limitation, by working late into the evening and
before and after medical appointments; even on days that were supposed to be entirely
“off” as sick/FMLA time.

On September 20, 2019, Carr sent an email containing unwarranted criticism and
reiterating his requirement that I provide him twenty-four (24) hours of any sick/FMLA
time.

I responded in writing to Carr detailing, among other things, errors in his criticism of my
performance. 1 told Carr that he was violating Comcast policy and FMLA policy in
requiring notice for use of sick days/FMLA leave.

On or about October 2, 2019, Carr met with me and further criticized my performance.

When I tried to provide Carr with information to demonstrate his criticism of me was
inaccurate, he cut me off.

I told Carr that I was feeling harassed.
Carr told me he would involve Human Resources.

On or about October 9, 2019, I met with Carr and Amy Masci (“Masci”), Human
Resources. I detailed for them the ways in which Carr’s prior letters were unwarranted and
inaccurate.

Following my complaints to Carr and Masci, Respondent continued to subject me to a
hostile work environment, including by way: of unwarranted criticism; micromanagement;
continuous increasing of my job duties, responsibilities and expectations; refusing to
appropriately staff my team to ensure that the work load across the team was appropriate;
and, otherwise hostile treatment.

. Carr continued to interfere with my FMLA rights and intermittent leave needs related to

my disability.
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On or about October 29, 2019, I sent an email complaining of disability discrimination to
Carr, Masci, Connell, and Andrew Topping (“Topping™) Vice President, Employee and
Labor Relations.

Following that email, Carr’s hostile and demeaning treatment of me continued. I required
additional treatment for my disability as the stress associated with my work conditions
worsened my health.

On or about December 9, 2019, Topping and individuals from Respondent’s legal
department falsely accused me of stealing “sensitive revenue data” from the company.
Topping based his accusation on a notice of data transfer from Respondent’s internal
systems. Yet, Topping failed to acknowledge that the notice was related to Respondent
swapping out my work computer for a new one and the related file transfer necessary to
ensure that the new computer had all of the same information as the old computer.

I understood the above false accusation to be retaliatory for my complaints of disability
discrimination and intended to intimidate me.

On or about December 13, 2019, T met with Stacy Schor (“Schor”), Director of Employee
Engagement and provided further information about the discrimination to which 1 was
being subjected, including in connection with a hostile work environment.

On or about December 18, 2019, Carr and Masci gave me a “choice” of accepting a
performance improvement plan or “PIP” or being terminated.

- If I chose termination and signed a release of all legal claims against Comeast, including

disability discrimination claims, I would receive sixty (60) days of severance.

Masci confirmed that there were no other options available to me other than termination or
accepting an unwarranted PIP.

The stress associated with the “choice” presented to me was followed by a spike in my
blood pressure and other symptoms related to my disability that required that I seek medical
treatment.

On or about January 6, 2020, Carr emailed the PIP to me.

The PIP contained factual inaccuracies.

I highlighted the factual inaccuracies to Carr and Masci during a meeting on January 7,
2020.
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. On or about January 14, 2020, I received an email from Masci confirming that I had not

stolen any data from the company.

On or about January 17, 2020, Carr sent a third version of the PIP, purportedly edited to
remove factual inaccuracies.

The PIP still contained factual inaccuracies, unwarranted criticism and required that I not
ever take any sick/intermittent FMLA leave.

On or about January 23, 2020, | emailed Respondent again complaining of disability
discrimination and asking Respondent to engage in the interactive process with me
regarding several outstanding requests for a reasonable accommaodation.

I made requests for reasonable accommodations as follows: breaks in the day to test my
glucose; a private area in the office to test my glucose and perform other medical tests as
necessary; a larger computer monitor to address my vision related issues; and periods of
rest throughout the day along with the ability to go for short walks.

I performed to the PIP, sending multiple deliverables to Carr who did not meet with me for
feedback as required by the PIP.

On or about March 5, 2020, Respondent informed me 1 would not receive any bonus or
salary increase. Typically, I received an approximately $15,000 bonus and an
approximately 3% salary increase.

On or about March 9, 2020, I received a “Does Not Meet™ rating for the prior year.
The rating was unwarranted.

On or about March 18, 2020, Respondent told me they would “extend” my PIP amid Covid-
19. But, instead of “extending” the existing PIP, Carr gave me a fourth version of a PIP
that continued to change my job duties expectations.

I again complained of disability discrimination to Masci and Schor.

To the best of my knowledge, Respondent never engaged in any meaningful investigation
of my complaints.

Between April 21, 2020 and April 29, 2020, as the hostile work environment to which I
was being subjected continued and as my requests for reasonable accommodations were
ignored, I complained of disability discrimination to Respondents and provided the basis
for my complaints.
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61. On or about May 6, 2020, Carr and Masci told me I was terminated, effective immediately.
62. The only reason given was that | had not completed my PIP.
63. The stated reason is false and pre-textual.

64. I asked Masci if Respondent would consider me for any open position elsewhere in the
organization.

65. Masci told me no.

C. Respondent’s Stated Reason

The Respondent has not provided a legitimate, non-discriminatory reason or the
discriminatory and retaliatory treatment detailed above, including in connection with:
subjecting me to a hostile work environment; placing me on an unwarranted PIP; denying me
a bonus and raise that | had earned; ignoring requests for reasonable accommodations; failing
to engage in the interactive process; my termination; and, refusing me to place me into a
different position within the organization. The reason for my termination provided by
Respondent, is false and pre-textual. Respondent has not provided any reason for the other
adverse acts detailed herein.

D. Statues and Basis of Allegations

I believe that Respondent has discriminated against me in violation of the Americans with
Disabilities Act, as amended 42 U.S.C. §12101, et seq. (“ADA™), the Pennsylvania Human
Relations Act, as amended 43 P.S. §951, et. seq. (“PHRA™), and the Philadelphia Fair Practices
Ordinance, Bill No. 130684, Philadelphia §9-1100, et. seq. (“PFPO™), inter alia.
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EEOC Form 161 (11/2020) U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION

DismissAL AND NOTICE OF RIGHTS

To: Robert Bates From:  Philadelphia District Office
REDACTED 801 Market Street
Kaneohe, HI 96744 Suite 1000

Philadelphia, PA 19107

l:l On behalf of person(s) aggrieved whose identity is
CONFIDENTIAL (29 CFR §1601.7(a))
EEOC Charge No. EEOC Representative Telephone No.
Legal Unit,
530-2020-05339 Legal Technician (267) 589-9707

THE EEOC IS CLOSING ITS FILE ON THIS CHARGE FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON:
The facts alleged in the charge fail to state a claim under any of the statutes enforced by the EEOC.

Your allegations did not involve a disability as defined by the Americans With Disabilities Act.
The Respondent employs less than the required number of employees or is not otherwise covered by the statutes.
Your charge was not timely filed with EEOC; in other words, you waited too long after the date(s) of the alleged

discrimination to file your charge

The EEOC issues the following determination: The EEOC will not proceed further with its investigation, and makes no
determination about whether further investigation would establish violations of the statute. This does not mean the claims
have no merit. This determination does not certify that the respondent is in compliance with the statutes. The EEOC
makes no finding as to the merits of any other issues that might be construed as having been raised by this charge.

The EEOC has adopted the findings of the state or local fair employment practices agency that investigated this charge.

0 Koo

Other (briefly state)

- NOTICE OF SUIT RIGHTS -

(See the additlonal information attached to this form.)

Title VII, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act, or the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act: This will be the only notice of dismissal and of your right to sue that we will send you.
You may file a lawsuit against the respondent(s) under federal law based on this charge in federal or state court. Your
lawsuit must be filed WITHIN 90 DAYS of your receipt of this notice; or your right to sue based on this charge will be
lost. (The time limit for filing suit based on a claim under state law may be different.)

Equal Pay Act (EPA): EPA suits must be filed in federal or state court within 2 years (3 years for willful violations) of the
alleged EPA underpayment. This means that backpay due for any violations that occurred more than 2 years (3 years)
before you file suit may not be collectible.

On behalf of the Commission

7 Llamdn—

12/03/2021
Enclosures(s) Jamie R. Williamson, (Date Issued)
District Director
ee David Brier, Esq. Katherine Oeltjen, Esq.
Assistant General Counsel CONSOLE MATTIACCI LAW, LLC
COMCAST CABLE COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 1525 Locust Street, 9th Floor
One Comcast Center, Legal Department Philadelphia, PA 19102

1701 John F Kennedy Boulevard
Philadelphia, PA 19103





